
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

WWaasshhiinnggttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  
BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  

MMeeeettiinngg  
NNoovveemmbbeerr  11,,  22002211  

  



October 28, 2021  4:44:48 PM 

 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2021 

COOPERATIVE EXTENSION’S CONFERENCE ROOM & LIVESTREAM 
 ON FACEBOOK VIA ZOOM 

128 E. WATER STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 
 
 6:00 PM  Call to Order—Vice-Chair Tracey A. Johnson 
 6:01 PM  Invocation / Pledge   

  Additions / Deletions 
 

Item 1 6:05 PM  Consent Agenda 
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature. The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote. Any item may be withheld from a general action, to 
be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
a) Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for October 4 & 11, 2021 and Closed Session Minutes 

for August 2 & September 7, 2021 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) Proclamation 2021-025 Tobacco Awareness Month 
d) Ratification of Resolution 2021-014 Approving Conveyance of Personal Property to a 

Nonprofit Organization Pursuant to GS 160A-280 
e) Resolution 2021-023 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 111 East Main Street, Plymouth, By 

Electronic Public Auction Pursuant to GS 160-270 
f) Resolution 2021-024 Resolution Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 758 Spruill Bridge Road 

Creswell, By Electronic Public Auction Pursuant to GS 160A-270 
 
Item 2 6:10 PM  Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3 6:20 PM Department Information Update: “Report to the People”, Ms. Rebecca Liverman, Cooperative 

Extension Director 
 
Item 4 6:40 PM Resolution 2021-026 Authorizing the Upset Bid Process for the Potential Sale of the Commerce 

Center at 100 Airport Road, Plymouth, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
Item 5 6:50 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance 

Officer 
 

Item 6 7:00 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 
 

Item 7 7:10 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-client 
privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 

 
 

Adjourn  



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  1    
 
       DATE:  November 1, 2021 
 
ITEM:   Consent Agenda      
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
a) Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for October 4 & 11, 2021 and Closed Session Minutes for 

August 2 & September 7, 2021 
See attached. 
 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
See attached. 
 

c) Proclamation 2021-025 Tobacco Awareness Month 
See attached. 
 

d) Ratification of Resolution 2021-014 Approving Conveyance of Personal Property to a Nonprofit 
Organization Pursuant to GS 160A-280 
See attached. 
 

e) Resolution 2021-023 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 111 East Main Street, Plymouth, By 
Electronic Public Auction Pursuant to GS 160-270 
See attached. 
 

f) Resolution 2021-024 Resolution Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 758 Spruill Bridge Road 
Creswell, By Electronic Public Auction Pursuant to GS 160A-270 
See attached. 
 

g) Grant Policy 
 
 

 



DRAFT 

                       
 
 

October 4, 2021 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
October 4, 2021 at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  
(Note:  Facebook is down therefore we are unable to ZOOM the meeting and livestream it to the 
County webpage.) Commissioners Tracey Johnson, Ann Keyes, Carol Phelps and Julius Walker, 
Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the 
Board Julie J. Bennett and Finance Officer Missy Dixon.  Commissioner Sexton was unable to 
attend. 
 

 Vice-Chair Johnson called the meeting to order. Commissioner Keyes gave the 
invocation; County Manager Potter led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  Vice-Chair Johnson noted that the Clerk asked to add 
Resolution 2021-020 5311 Designee Certification Form to the Consent Agenda as Item 1g).  It 
goes along with Item 1d) and the Finance Officer asked to add Budget Amendment BA#2022-022 
under Item 5. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA:  Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda with the above noted change: 
 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
a) Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes for September 7, 2021 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) Soil & Water MOU 
d) FY2023 Community Transportation Program (CTP) Grant Submission Resolution 
e) Proclamation 2021-017:  National Breast Cancer Awareness Month 
f) Proclamation 2021-018:  Domestic Violence Awareness Month 
g) Resolution 2021-020 5311 Designee Certification Form    

 
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  

Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously.  
   
 PUBLIC FORUM:  None. 
 
 DEPARTMENT INFORMATION UPDATE:  PLYMOUTH MUNICIPAL AIRPORT (PMA):  
Mr. Knapp Brabble, Airport Director gave the following presentation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 

 
 Mr. Brabble said he started working at the PMA in 2005. Mr. Brabble gave a little history of the 
airport. Originally, the runway was a bit shorter and the airport had been behind the 8-ball because of 
this.  The FAA was petitioned to lengthen the runway. In 2006, construction was started to extend the 



DRAFT 

runway by 1800 ft., making it 5500 ft., then small props or single engines could land there. However, 
there is still a weight limit of 100,000 lbs. on the runway.  In doing the runway extension, some drainage 
work had to be done under the runway. In 2012, the PMA was cited by the FAA for trees growing on the 
runway approach. The County acquired the Stotesberry property to be able to cut down those trees.  In 
2019, the County got a grant to put in the taxiway to the runway.  Mr. Brabble explained that consultants 
were hired to do our Airport Layout Plan (ALP) which is required by the FAA. This plan will need to be 
updated every 5 years. If the County doesn’t update it, we will be unable to receive federal funding. Item 
such an AWOS – Airport Weather Operating System—can be contacted for the weather in Plymouth, a 
terminal building, t-hangars, corporate hangars, and fencing are among the items we are putting in the 
ALP.  The County is going to have to cut some timber also.  Emergency Management may be able to get 
the underbrush chopped rather than sprayed. Mr. Brabble also noted that there is a bump in the runway 
and he is looking for a way to fix it himself rather than tearing up the runway. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes thanked Mr. Brabble for always providing assistance at the Airport when it 
was needed. 
 
 Commissioner Walker asked about how they measure the “21” on the one runway where the 
FAA said the 1 was too far to the left.  Mr. Brabble said they measured it from the center. 
 
 Vice-Chair Johnson said she looks forward to seeing the improvements and appreciates all Mr. 
Brabble does for the Airport. 
 

RESOLUTION 2021-019 ADOPTING REDISTRICTING MAP:  Mr. Harry White, 
GIS/Mapping Director and Mr. Richard Livingston, Lead for North Carolina Fellow (LFNC) 
presented the following Resolution and Redistricting Map.  Mr. Livingston noted that there were 
over 300 interactions on FB on this topic but no questions.  Vice-Chair Johnson asked was there 
supposed to be a public hearing before approving this.  Mr. Potter said no it was not a 
requirement. 

 
Commissioner Walker said he met with Mr. White about his questions and is now 

satisfied. Commissioner Phelps said he was satisfied and so was Commissioners Keyes and 
Johnson. 



DRAFT 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the Redistricting Resolution and 

Map #2 as presented above.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson 
proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 



DRAFT 

 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion approve the budget transfers/amendments as 

presented. Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll 
call:  Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
MANAGER OR CLERK:   
 
 Mr. Potter had a couple of items he needed to mention to the Board.  We have a joint meeting with 
the Washington County Board of Education next Monday to discuss the DPI report.  Vice-Chair Johnson 
said she hasn’t had time to look over the report yet, but asked the Commissioners to talk amongst 



DRAFT 

themselves and also to the County manager if they have any questions. Mr. Potter said he would like any 
comments/suggestions by Thursday, October 7 @ noon.  
 
 The Citizens Academy starts on October 18 and currently there are 5 citizens signed up.  Mr. Potter 
said ideally he would like to have 15 signed up, so if you know some who may want to get involved, 
please have them sign up.  The Citizens Academy will be held in the Commissioners’ Room @ 6:00 pm 
on October 18th.  The first one is about Administration—the County Manager’s Office, the Board and the 
Clerk to the Board. There will be six sessions.  
 
 Mr. Potter said the annual meeting of the Southern Albemarle Association will be Thursday, 
October 21 at the Vernon James Center.  Mr. Potter stated he will not be able to attend due to a conflict. 
Vice-Chair Johnson said the County needs to stay on top of when it’s Washington County’s time to be 
President.  
 
 Mr. Potter said he is working on finding ways to spend ARP funds.  Please let Mr. Potter know if 
the Board has a “wish list”. 
 
 Commissioner Phelps made a motion go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS §143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege), NCGS§143-318.11(a)(4) (economic development) and 
NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson 
proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Back on Open Session, Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Halloween 
Resolution discussed in Closed Session and shown below.  Vice-Chair Johnson proceeded with the 
roll call:  Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; 
Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 Vice-Chair Johnson also mentioned the upcoming Washington County High School 
Homecoming Parade, which is Friday, October 8th and said the Commissioners have been asked to ride 



DRAFT 

in the parade.  Line-up is at 3:45 PM at the corner of Main and Monroe Streets. Commissioner Walker 
said he will participate and he will pick up the keys for the County Manager’s Durango at 3:30 PM. 
 

At 8:46 PM, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Keyes made a motion to recess 
the meeting to Monday, October 11 at 6:00 PM to have the joint meeting with the Board of 
Education at the Washington County High School Gym, 800 East Main Street, Plymouth.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Vice-Chair Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner 
Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
              Tracey A. Johnson                       Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 

      Vice-Chair        Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 



 

                       
 
 

October 11, 2021 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a recessed meeting on Monday, 
October 11, 2021 at 6:00 PM in Gym of Washington County High School, 800 East Main Street, 
Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey Johnson, Ann Keyes, Carol Phelps and Julius Walker, Jr. 
were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the 
Board Julie J. Bennett and Finance Officer Missy Dixon.  Commissioner Sexton was unable to 
attend. 
 

 Vice-Chair Johnson called the Board of County Commissioners recessed meeting to 
order. She then turned over the meeting to Chair Riddick.  Chair Riddick led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

 PRESENTATION DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION (DPI) FACILITIES 
REPORT ON WASHINGTON COUNTY SCHOOLS:  Dr. Robert Taylor, Deputy State 
Superintendent Student and School Advancement NC, DPI led the discussion.  All Board 
members previously received the 126 page report produced by DPI.  Dr. Taylor discussed the 
summary that came out of that report. (See below.) 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 One thing that everyone agreed on is that the County has old buildings. The roofs and 
walls need to be opened up to see what’s in them, then there would be a better idea of what the 
cost would be to repair them. 
 
 A Business Plan Study was mentioned by DPI—they want the BOE and BoCC to be fully 
informed.  It was also stated that Pines Elementary School could still be used.  The timeframe for 
building any new school would be a year for design and 2 years for construction—this is not a 
sprint—it’s a steady race. 
 
 DPI opened the floor for questions from the Boards. Vice-Chair Johnson said the 
Commissioners defer to the County Manager.  Mr. Potter, CM/CA talked about a spending 
summary that Dr. Carr, WCS Superintendent sent in an email on 10/11/2021 on ESSR spending 
and felt Dr. Carr should be the one to speak about that. Dr. Carr spoke on the information below. 
 
ESSER II PRC 171- received $2,946,526.21 late spring of 2021 and these funds must be 
spent by September 30, 2023. 
 
Minimum of twenty percent of total allotment has to be used towards learning loss. We 
have allotted $786,630.65 to address this need. Areas of focus here are hiring an Instructional 
technology Facilitator, District Reading Specialist, increase of Instructional Coach capacity. As 
well as provide professional development to all staff, implement AVID at WCMS, PGC at 
WCHS, extend and enhance district curriculum initiative, field experiences for students, and 
extend day programs. 
Improving Air Quality: $900,000. Max allowed 
Air quality sensors and purification devices have been purchased.  Heating and air units are 
being replaced as needed to ensure adequate air flow in all spaces. Other repairs to equipment as 
needed 
Supplies to Sanitize and Clean: $328,000 
Hiring of additional Maintenance Worker to ensure safe and clean schools plus the purchase of  
PPE supplies and materials such as shields, face masks, etc and cleaning supplies such as 
electrostatic sprayers, disinfectant,  hand sanitizer and sanitizing stations.  
Education Technology: $150,000 
Computer based Interventions and Instructional Aides such as Edmentum and Edgenuity that 
will support student learning both virtually and remotely.  
Mental Health Services: $95,000 
Hire additional SEL Support Staff and purchase of Social Emotion Resources to help students 
cope with added stress of the pandemic.  



 

Summer Learning: $658,396.31 
Summer of 2021 and Summer of 2022 Summer Extend Learning Camps. Which includes 
teacher, TA, and bus driver salaries and bonuses. All instructional materials and supplies, snacks/ 
water, competency based assessment programs, field trips, events, etc.  
Unbudgeted Reserve: $28,499.25 
Funds that remain to provide flexibility for unexpected situations that may arise due to Covid-19. 
 
ESSER III PRC 181- received $4,465,837.00 late spring of 2021 and these funds must be 
spent by September 30, 2024. 
 
Minimum of twenty percent of total allotment has to be used towards learning loss. We 
have allotted $1,105,248.00 to address this need. Areas of focus here are continuation of  
Instructional technology Facilitator, District Reading Specialist, increase of Instructional Coach 
capacity. As well as provide professional development to all staff, implement AVID at WCMS, 
PGC at WCHS, extend and enhance district curriculum initiative, field experiences for students, 
extend day programs, STEAM camps, MakerSpaces, increase support of arts based programs, 
and supplemental pay for educators that exceed growth 
Facility Repairs $500,000.00  
Touchless fixtures and water filtration systems.  
Improving Air Quality: $117,754.00 
Replace and repair of heating and air systems as needed to ensure adequate air flow in all spaces, 
purchasing of higher grade filters, HVAC repairs, and other repairs to equipment/ building as 
needed for ventilation and air quality 
Supplies to Sanitize and Clean: $288,244.00 
Continuation of additional Maintenance Worker to ensure safe and clean schools, plus cleaning 
of all HVAC systems, ducts, and vents, the purchase of  PPE supplies and materials such as 
shields, face masks, etc and cleaning supplies such as electrostatic sprayers, disinfectant,  hand 
sanitizer and sanitizing stations.  
Education Technology: $440,000.00 
Computer based Interventions and Instructional Aides such as Edmentum and Edgenuity that 
will support student learning both virtually and remotely. Plus repair and replacement of student 
and staff devices, AV/ Instructional Tech equipment to ensure virtually and remote learning 
experience and meetings are successful.  
Mental Health Services: $300,000.00 
Continuation of additional SEL Support Staff and purchase of Social Emotion Resources to help 
students cope with added stress of the pandemic including flexible seating, and calm down room 
supplies.  
Summer Learning: $658,960.00 
Summer of 2023 and Summer of 2024 Summer Extend Learning Camps. Which includes 
teacher, TA, and bus driver salaries and bonuses. All instructional materials and supplies, snacks/ 
water, competency based assessment programs, field trips, events, etc.  
Other Activities $1,027,737.00 
Addressing staffing Needs of schools, additional resources to help principals and other district 
leaders retain staff and Unbudgeted Reserve Funds that remain to provide flexibility for 
unexpected situations that may arise due to Covid-19. 
 
Additional release of $2,201,899.00 in funding in 2022. 
 



 

 Mr. Potter stated that the county has $1.5M for capital outlay funding for school capital 
expenses. 
 
 Ms. Carr Linda said based on the study, CES, dual language, and early college have 
found a home in the Creswell School.  Ms. Carr went on to say that Pines Elementary School is 
still a wonderful school and located at an ideal spot and a new school there would become a 
beacon for our County. A new school would also become the new Central Office also.  
 
 BoE Chair Riddick said he felt that the County and WCS should begin having the 2-on-2 
meetings to move forward.  (Note:  the 2-on-2 meetings are usually made up of the Board of 
Commissioners’ Chair, Vice-Chair, County Manager (and Finance Officer if needed) and the 
Board of Education’s Chair, Vice-Chair, Superintendent (and Finance Officer if needed).  
 
 Vice-Chair Johnson thanked the DPI staff for attending the meeting tonight. 
 

At 6:55 PM, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Keyes made a motion to 
adjourn the Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Vice-Chair 
Johnson proceeded with the roll call:  Commissioner Walker, yea; Commissioner Phelps, yea; 
Commissioner Keyes, yea; Commissioner Johnson, yea.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
              Tracey A. Johnson                       Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 

      Vice-Chair        Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 

 

















Page 1 of 2 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

PROCLAMATION 2021-025 
TOBACCO AWARENESS MONTH 

 
 WHEREAS, tobacco use is the leading preventable cause of death in North Carolina and 
the United States;1 and, 
 
 WHEREAS, in 1964 the United States first Surgeon General’s report linked smoking to 
lung cancer and bronchitis;2 and,  
 
 WHEREAS, in 2006 the United States Surgeon General provided scientific evidence that 
showed there is no risk-free level of exposure to secondhand smoke;3 and, 
 

WHEREAS, in 2014 the United States Surgeon General provided evidence that smoking 
seriously damages nearly every part of the human body;4 and, 

 
WHEREAS, in 2016 the United States Surgeon General provided evidence that e-

cigarette use among youth can cause long term harm to the developing brain and respiratory 
system. Additional risks include: mood disorders, the decrease of impulse control, and alters the 
brain to produce future addiction to other drugs;5 and, 

  

 WHEREAS, according to the North Carolina 2019 Youth Tobacco Survey Results, e-
cigarettes are the number one product used by youth since 2015.  In addition, 90% of tobacco 
users start before the age of 18;6 and, 
 
  WHEREAS, the Martin-Tyrrell-Washington District Health Department has provided 
education, spread awareness and offered intervention links for our youth population, and the use 
of tobacco and electronic cigarettes continues to present a challenge to the health and well-
being of our youth population; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners wishes to support the 
Martin-Tyrrell-Washington District Health Department in its responsibility to promote the health 
of the public in Washington County. 
 
  
 

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, we, the Washington County Board of Commissioners, do hereby 
proclaim the Month of November, 2021 as Tobacco Awareness Month and call upon the 
people of Washington County to increase their awareness and understanding of the impact that 
tobacco use has on our citizens.  
 

ADOPTED this the 1st day of November, 2021. 
 
 
 
              
      __________________________________________ 

          Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair 
          Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

 

1NC DPH: Tobacco Prevention and Control Branch. (n.d.). Tobacco prevention and control branch. 
North Carolina Tobacco Prevention and Control Branch Home Page. Retrieved October 15, 2021, 
from https://www.tobaccopreventionandcontrol.ncdhhs.gov/.  

2Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019, November 15). History of the surgeon general's 
report on Smoking and health. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Retrieved October 15, 
2021, from https://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/sgr/history/index.htm.  

36 major conclusions of the Surgeon General Report. (n.d.). Retrieved October 15, 2021, from 
https://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/sgr/2006/pdfs/6major-conclusions.pdf.  

4Office of the Surgeon General. (2021, March 12). Health consequences of smoking, surgeon general 
fact sheet. HHS.gov. Retrieved October 15, 2021, from 
https://www.hhs.gov/surgeongeneral/reports-and-publications/tobacco/consequences-smoking-
factsheet/index.html.  

5Know the risks of e-cigarettes for young people: Know the risks: U.S. surgeon general's report. Know 
the Risks: E-cigarettes and Young People. (n.d.). Retrieved October 15, 2021, from https://e-
cigarettes.surgeongeneral.gov/knowtherisks.html.  

6Center for Tobacco Products. (n.d.). Youth and tobacco. U.S. Food and Drug Administration. Retrieved 
October 15, 2021, from https://www.fda.gov/tobacco-products/public-health-education/youth-and-
tobacco.  



COUNTY OF WASHINGTON 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

COMMISSIONERS: 

WILLIAM 'BILL' R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 

TRACEY A JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES 

CAROL V. PHELPS 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

FAX (252) 793-1183 

RESOLUTION 2021·014 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 

CURTIS S. POTTER 
COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 

cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE 'MISSY" DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

APPROVING CONVEYANCE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY TO 

A NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160A-280 

WHEREAS, the County of Washington owns a green 1998 Ford E/50 Van currently 
estimated to have an approximate value of $1,459.00; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-280 authorizes a city or county to convey 
personal property for nonmonetary consideration to a nonprofit corporation if the governing 
board deems the property to be surplus, obsolete, or unused; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Washington has determined that the personal property described 
above is surplus, obsolete, or unused; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Washington finds that the public will benefit from the conveyance 
of the property described above by donating the Van to Roanoke Developmental Center, who 
provide many programs that enrich the vulnerable population they serve but also to the 
organizations in which the participants volunteer. Roanoke Developmental Center has had a 
long relationship with Washington County and has asked numerous times over a span of years 
to purchase or receive a surplus vehicle the County no longer utilizes. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE WAStBNGTON COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 

1. That the County Manager and County Finance Officer of Washington County is authorized
to execute all documents necessary to convey title to the green 1998 Ford E150 Van to
Roanoke Developmental Center.

2. That the consideration for the conveyance is for Roanok.e Developmental Center to utilize
the van to continue serving citizens of Washington County through its programs without
limitation due to transport service. 

3. That In accordance with the notice requirements of N.C.G.S. § 160A-280, public notice 
of this resolution was given by {describe how notice was given, such as*"posting on the

Page 1 of2 



city/county website" and state the state on which the notice was posted. Notice must be 
given at least 5 days prior to the board meeting at which the resolution is adopted.} 

ADOPTED this fday of �, 202,1 in Washington County, NC. 

ATTEST: 

Tracey A. J
Washington Cou 

, , C 
Clerk to the Board 

nson, Vice-Chair 
Board of Commissioners 

Page 2 of2 

*Pursuant to NCGS 160A-260, the public notice was published via 

the County Facebook page.  This resolution was ratified this ____ day 

of ___________, 2021 in Washington County.



Page 1 of 4 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

RESOLUTION 2021-023 
AUTHORIZING SALE OF REAL PROPERTY, 111 EAST MAIN ST PLYMOUTH, BY 

ELECTRONIC PUBLIC AUCTION PURSUANT TO G.S. 160 A-270 
 

WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-270 authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of 
Washington County to sell real property at public auction, including electronic public auction, 
upon adoption of a resolution authorizing the appropriate official to dispose of the property at 
public auction subject to the Board’s acceptance of the highest bid; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the County Manager has recommended that the property, described below, 
should be sold as public auction as surplus property; and 
 

1. 111 E Main St, NC; Tax Pin #6767.00-67-9717; Deed Book 430, Page 377;  
2. Approximate estimated tax value (see Attachment A) 
3. Approximate estimated back taxes owed: County = $9,478.71/Town= $6,706.26 (See 

Attachment B) 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of County Commissioners of Washington County hereby 
resolves as follows: 

1. The County Manager or their designee is authorized to sell by electronic auction at 
www.govdeals.com the surplus property described above; advertising from November 
2- December 2, 2021 and bidding December 3-28, 2021; following approval of this 
resolution. 

2. Electronic advertisements of the sale of real property, described above, shall be 
posted at least 30 calendar days prior to the date on which bidding for the property 
opens. 

3. Electronic advertisements shall be posted on the Washington County website and, 
where feasible, by other electronic means through which notice of the electronic 
auction may be broadly advertised.  

4. Electronic advertisements shall identify and provide a general description of the 
property to be sold, the date and time at which electronic bidding opens, the 
electronic address where information about the property to be sold can be found, a 

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 

http://www.govdeals.com/


Page 2 of 4 
 

reference to the resolution authorizing the sale, and any other relevant terms and 
conditions of sale. 

5. After conclusion of the bid process, the results shall be reported to the Board at their 
next regularly scheduled meeting, and the Board shall accept or reject the bid within 
30 days of said report. 

 
ADOPTED this the 1st day of November, 2021. 
 
 

              
      __________________________________________ 

          Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair 
          Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Page 3 of 4 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

 
 

 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

 
 

County Taxes Owed 

 
Town Taxes Owed 

 
 



Page 1 of 4 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

RESOLUTION 2021-024 
AUTHORIZING SALE OF REAL PROPERTY, 758 SPRUILL BRIDGE ROAD 

CRESWELL, BY ELECTRONIC PUBLIC AUCTION PURSUANT  
TO G.S. 160 A-270 

 
WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-270 authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of 

Washington County to sell real property at public auction, including electronic public auction, 
upon adoption of a resolution authorizing the appropriate official to dispose of the property at 
public auction subject to the Board’s acceptance of the highest bid; and 

 
  WHEREAS, the County Manager has recommended that the property, described below, 
should be sold as public auction as surplus property; and 
 

1. 758 Spruill Bridge Creswell, NC; Tax Pin #7777.00-67-2165; Deed Book 525, Page 
372-373;  

2. Approximate estimated tax value (see Attachment A) 
3. Approximate estimated back taxes owed to the County : $11986.87 (See Attachment B) 

NOW THEREFORE, the Board of County Commissioners of Washington County hereby 
resolves as follows: 

 
1. The County Manager or their designee is authorized to sell by electronic auction at 

www.govdeals.com the surplus property described above; advertising from November 
2- December 2, 2021 and bidding December 3-28, 2021; following approval of this 
resolution. 

2. Electronic advertisements of the sale of real property, described above, shall be 
posted at least 30 calendar days prior to the date on which bidding for the property 
opens. 

3. Electronic advertisements shall be posted on the Washington County website and, 
where feasible, by other electronic means through which notice of the electronic 
auction may be broadly advertised.  

4. Electronic advertisements shall identify and provide a general description of the 
property to be sold, the date and time at which electronic bidding opens, the 
electronic address where information about the property to be sold can be found, a 

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 

http://www.govdeals.com/


Page 2 of 4 
 

reference to the resolution authorizing the sale, and any other relevant terms and 
conditions of sale. 

5. After conclusion of the bid process, the results shall be reported to the Board at their 
next regularly scheduled meeting, and the Board shall accept or reject the bid within 
30 days of said report. 

 
ADOPTED this the 1st day of November, 2021. 
 
 

              
      __________________________________________ 

          Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair 
          Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Page 3 of 4 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

 

 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   2 
 
       DATE:     November 1, 2021 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for 
comments from the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public 
comment period.  
 
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the 
beginning of each regular monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum 
of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the 
meeting at which they wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins 
prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall clearly write their name, address, and the topic 
upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
 
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, 
which I wish to remind the public is: 
 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and 

begin their remarks by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer 

any impromptu questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks 
to the Board as a body, and not to any individual board or staff members.  
Discussions between speakers and members of the audience shall not be allowed. 



4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use 
profanity, racial slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal 
attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their 
remarks depending on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may 
limit the number of speakers allowed to make substantially similar comments 
with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are 
encouraged to leave a copy of such remarks and documents with the County 
Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of 
public hearings set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session 
matters, including without limitation matters within the attorney-client privilege, 
anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property acquisition, and matters 
which are made confidential by law. 

HOW TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PUBLIC FORUM DURING 
COVID-19 AT THE NOVEMBER 1, 2021 WASHINGTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
 
Due to regrettably necessary ongoing protective measures related to COVID-

19, it will likely be necessary limit and restrict physical access to this meeting.  
Washington County is committed to maintaining the highest standards of transparency 
and community engagement during these challenging times, and appreciates your 
patience and understanding with such restrictions. The October 4, 2021 Board of 
Commissioners meeting will take place at 128 E. Water Street, Plymouth, NC in 
the Cooperative Extension Conference Room and be live streamed on the County’s 
Facebook Page. Please review the following information carefully regarding alternative 
ways to access or participate in this, or any other public hearing, or any public comment 
portion of a regular meeting. 

 
1. Access and View the meeting online.  The meeting will be live streamed on the 

County’s publicly accessible Facebook page at:  www.facebook.com/Washconc/  
 
2. Only if you wish to speak during any public comment period, you may attend the 

meeting in person for such purpose.  You must arrive at 128 E. Water Street before 
6:00 PM to sign up.  You must wear a cloth protective mask, maintain at least three 
feet of distance between yourself and all other persons, and follow any other 
applicable social distancing guidance.  You may be asked to wait outside (please 
come prepared for inclement weather), and each person may be called into the 
meeting room one at a time to address the Board before being required to leave the 
meeting room in order to limit overall occupancy and comply with applicable 
regulations and guidance.  You may still follow the remainder of the meeting which 
will be live streaming on the Facebook page referred to above, or may access a 

http://www.facebook.com/Washconc/


recording of the full meeting which will remain accessible on our Facebook page for 
at least 48 hours after the meeting is concluded. 

 
Please contact Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board at 252-793-5823, or by email at 
jbennett@washconc.org before 2:00 PM on Monday, November 1, 2021 with any 
questions or concerns related to this notice or access to or participation in the 
November 1, 2021 meeting. 

 

mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     November 1, 2021 
 
ITEM:       Department Information Update:  “Report to the People”, Cooperative 

Extension, Ms. Rebecca Liverman, Director, Cooperative Extension 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
This is a new item added to the monthly agenda.  Each month a different Department 
Head will be asked to come and speak to the Commissioners about the work going on in 
their area.  For the November 1, 2021 meeting, Ms. Rebecca Liverman, Director of 
Washington County’s Cooperative Extension will give their annual “Report to the 
People”. 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     November 1, 2021 
 
ITEM:       Resolution 2021-026 Authorizing the Upset Bid Process for the Potential 

Sale of the Commerce Center at 100 Airport Road, Plymouth, Mr. 
Curtis Potter, CM/CA 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Please see attached. 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item Memo Page 1 of 2 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

  AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: November 1st, 2021 MEMO Date: October 28, 2021           ITEM:  4  
SUBJECT: Potential Sale of Commerce Center via Upset Bid Process 
DEPARTMENT: Economic Development 
FROM: Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Washington County Resolution 2021-026 Authorizing Upset Bid Process (3pgs)
B- Washington County Commerce Building (100 Airport Rd, Plymouth NC 27962) Fact Sheet (2pgs)
C- Site Survey of 11.83 acre Washington County Commerce Center Tract One (1pg)
D- Property Tax Card Dated 3/25/2021 (1pg)
E- Public Notice of Intent to Sell (1pg)
F- Local Gov’t Property Disposal Procedures - Sale by Negotiated Offer and Upset Bid (G.S. 160A-269) (1pg)

PURPOSE: For Board consideration and approval of Resolution 2021-026 Authorizing Upset Bid Process For 
the Potential Sale Of The Washington County Commerce Center Located at 100 Airport Rd, Plymouth NC 27962 

BACKGROUND:  
- 2010 County surveyed 11.83 acres @Airport Rd as “Washington County Commerce Center Tract One”
- 2011 substantial completion of exterior construction of 25,000 sf shell building intended for use by a

specific economic development business partner based on specific building needs which ultimately failed
to develop resulting in an incomplete and stalled overall project prior to the completion of construction.
Unfinished items included flooring, HVAC, plumbing, water/sewer, etc.

- 2014-2019 substantial completion of necessary water/sewer infrastructure
- 2020 Property Revaluation (Assessed value decreased substantially from $1,574,300 to $843,200)

o Interior floor, loading bay door cut-ins, HVAC, internal plumbing remains unfinished & incomplete
o Exterior ramp walkways require substantial repairs due to water intrusion/damage

- 2021 County approached by multiple interested purchasers seeking to expand existing business operations
using this site.  After discussing possible economic development incentives packages and 
conveyance options with the UNC School of Government, staff recommended proceeding with a 
potential sale under NCGS 158-7.1 using an upset bid process per NCGS 160A-269  

- 10/13/21 & 10/20/21 - County published attached “Public Notice of Intent to Sell”
- 10/14/21 County received a tentative written offer and 5% deposit from Triple Waves Industrial

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES 

CAROL V. PHELPS 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 



Agenda Item Memo   Page 2 of 2 
 

Laundry which currently owns and operates a commercial laundry facility located at 108 US 
Highway 64E, Plymouth NC 27962 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS/IMPACTS:   

- Staff estimate of major local funding investments to date: $500k construction; $186k infra: 
- Est. annual business property tax rev per $1M property/equipment located/invested at site:  $8.5k 
- Est. annual real property tax rev based on current rate/value (subj to increase for improvements):  $7.1k 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STAFF DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS: 

- Based on staff’s analysis of the costs vs. benefits of conveying the Commerce Center into private 
ownership as originally intended albeit at a substantially lower than anticipated potential price, and based 
on the lack of risk to the county in initiating and evaluating potential offers to purchase the property likely 
to be received in the current market based on recent interest expressed by three (3) local established 
businesses, staff recommends approving the attached resolution to initiate the 10 day upset bid process 
after which a public hearing will be held at which additional information about the highest bidder will be 
presented and discussed for the Board’s consideration in potentially approving the sale of the property to 
that highest bidder. 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 

Vote to approve the attached Resolution 2021-026 

Potential Future Revenue Estimates* 10 YEARS 20 YEARS 30 YEARS 40 YEARS 
Current Empty Bldg $71k $142k $213k $284K 
Improved Empty Bldg $85k $170k $255k $340K 
Improved Empty Bldg w/ $1M 
equip/property 

$170k $340k $510k $680K 
 

Improved Empty Bldg w/ $2M 
equipment/property 

$255k $510k $765k $1M 

*Estimates only: based on certain underlying assumptions about property valuation and tax rates which are subject to a wide variety 
of sometimes volatile and unpredictable regulations.  Estimates do not include potential additional revenues generated from 
water/sewer services. 



Washington County Resolution 2021-026  Page 1 of 3 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
FAX (252) 793-1183 

 

 
RESOLUTION 2021-026 

Authorizing Upset Bid Process  
For the Potential Sale Of The Washington County Commerce Center  

Located at 100 Airport Road, Plymouth Nc 27962  
 

WHEREAS, Washington County owns certain real property consisting of approximately 11.83+/- acres 
as more particularly described and shown in a map entitled “Survey of: Washington County Commerce 
Center Tract One” dated January 26, 2010 and revised March 27, 2010 by Timothy J. Esolen, PLS, being 
recorded in Plat Cabinet 3, Slide 33H, in the Washington County Register of Deeds Office, and for 
additional reference purposes only having a Tax Parcel ID Number of 6766417088; and  
 

WHEREAS, the County previously constructed a 25,000+/- square foot industrial shell building 
together with certain other improvements and infrastructure serving said building which are situated upon 
and considered part of the property described above; and  

 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 158-7.1 authorizes a county to undertake an economic 

development project by conveying property to a company in order to cause the company to locate or 
expand its operations within the county; and 

 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 permits a county to sell property by upset 

bid, after receipt of an offer for the property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County has received an offer to purchase the property described above, in the amount 
of $235,000 submitted by Ervin Shperdheja of Triple Waves Industrial Laundry, LLC; and 

 
WHEREAS, Triple Waves Industrial Laundry has paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on its 

offer;  

COMMISSIONERS: 
WILLIAM “BILL’ R. SEXTON, JR., CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON, VICE-CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES 

CAROL V. PHELPS 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, CMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Washington County Resolution 2021-026  Page 2 of 3 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON 
COUNTY (the “Board”) HEREBY RESOLVES THAT: 

 
1. The potential sale (subject to final approval by the Board) of the property described above through 

the upset bid procedure of North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 is hereby authorized. 
 

2. The Clerk to the Board shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published. The notice shall 
describe the property and the amount of the offer, and shall state the terms under which the offer 
may be upset. 
 

3. Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer 
to the office of the Clerk to the Board within 10 days after the notice of sale is published. At the 
conclusion of the 10-day period, the Clerk to the Board shall open the bids, if any, and the highest 
such bid will become the new offer. If there is more than one bid in the highest amount, the first 
such bid received will become the new offer. 
 

4. If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Clerk to the Board shall cause a new notice of upset bid 
to be published, and shall continue to do so until a 10-day period has passed without any qualifying 
upset bid having been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to 
the Board.  
 

5. A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent (10%) of 
the first $1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that offer.  
 

6. A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent (5%) 
of the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s check, or certified check. The county will 
return the deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset 
if a qualifying higher bid is received. The County will return the deposit of the final high bidder at 
closing. 
 

7.  
 

8. The terms of the potential final sale include all the following: 
 

a. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the property shall be conveyed by the county in its present 
AS-IS WHERE-IS condition, without any warranties or guarantees, and subject to any and all 
defects, latent or patent, material or otherwise, including without limitation the physical 
condition of the building and supporting infrastructure, as well as the legal status of the title to 
the property which shall be conveyed subject to any and all  recorded restrictive covenants, 
easements, liens, notices, or any other matters of title recorded in the Washington County 
Register of Deeds Office or otherwise appearing in any publicly available records. 
 

b. The property shall be conveyed subject to a restrictive covenant running with the land in 
perpetuity that the property must be used at all times solely for industrial/commercial purposes 
and in general conformity with any and all applicable laws related thereto. 
 

c. The Board by subsequent Resolution must approve the final high offer (including the initial 
offer received if no subsequent offers are made) prior to the sale being considered finally 



Washington County Resolution 2021-026 Page 3 of 3 

approved by the Board and being able to proceed to closing. 

i. The Board reserves the right within its sole discretion, for any reason or no reason,
and at any time prior to giving its subsequent approval of the final high offer, to
reject any and all offers or bids, including the initial offer described herein.

ii. Within 30 days after the final upset bid period has passed, and prior to approving
the final high offer by subsequent Resolution, the Board shall conduct a public
hearing to assist it in more fully evaluating the final high offer including the
economic development merits of approving said offer and conveying the property
to the potential buyer making it.  The potential buyer shall attend the public hearing
and shall cooperate in good faith with the Board and County staff to provide before,
and if necessary present during, such hearing relevant information related to the
buyer’s intended use of the property including without limitation at a minimum
information about the following:

a. Information related to the buyer’s general short-term & long-term property
improvement plans;

b. Information about the number and type of potential jobs the buyer intends to
create in connection with the property; and

c. Information about the probable average hourly wages to be paid in connection
with any such jobs.

d. The buyer shall pay the full purchase price for the property in cash at the time of closing which
shall take place within 30 days after the Board has approved the final high offer by subsequent
Resolution after the public hearing described above.  Failure to close within 30 days of final
approval by the Board for no fault or delay caused by the County shall result in the buyer’s
forfeiture of the bid deposit unless otherwise agreed in writing between the parties.

ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 

__________________________________________ 

Tracey A. Johnson, Vice-Chair 
Washington County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: ________________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 



Available For Sale 
Attractive 25,000 square foot shell building, close to 

Plymouth Airport, and the Roanoke River for potential 
barging.  Sits on 11+ acres with possible future expansion 
southward along Airport Road.

1 story shell building (204' x 122' x 30') with metal roof 
and split-faced block/metal wall panels built in 2011 with 
unfinished floor and 75 parking spaces.  Existing water & 
commercial sewage completed in 2019, potential natural 
gas/broadband options negotiable based on need.  Site is 
immediately adjacent to existing rail provided by Carolina 
Rail Service and may be eligible for direct spur if desired.

Located within 2 miles of US Hwy 64 (4-lane divided hwy), 
19 miles of future Interstate 87, and 70 miles from

Interstate 95.  Located 96 miles from Raleigh-Durham 

International Airport.  Port of Norfolk is 99 miles away, 

Port of Morehead City is 105 miles away.  

Washington County Commerce Building 
100 Airport Road, Plymouth, NC  27962 



Washington County Commerce Building 
100 Airport Road, Plymouth, NC  27962 

Traffic Count: 

US Hwy 64 has an Annual Average Daily Traffic 
Count of 13,000 vehicles 

Zoning: 
- Industrial/Commercial

Demographics 

 1 Mi le   3 Miles    5 Miles 
Population (2019)   224    4,051    6,977 
Households  94    1,713   2.937 
Median HH Income $50,708    $34,667    $33,926 
Median Home Value   $101,786   $96,154   $90,544 
Median Age     42.7   42.2    44.0 

Washington County Economic Development 
116 Adams Street 

PO Box 1007 
Plymouth, NC  27962 
Phone:  252-793-5823 

Email:  CMOAssistant@washconc.org





WASHINGTON COUNTY (AIRPORT/COMMERCE)
EXEMPT00000

CEM FIN

MAP

I/O OTWP/RURAL #

DISTACCOUNT #

1

98031

PROPERTY LOCATIO
255 PLYMOUTH AIRPORT RD

BLDG INDUSTRL CL 41.50 PROPERTY CLASS 51 PARCEL #

NEW CONSTRUCTION

WASHINGTON COUNTY

PIN

HEARING CODE

COMPUTER CONTROL FIELDS

Bldg. and Use

INDUSTRL

Story Height

1 STORY

Fd. or Bsmt.

NO BSMT/CRAWL

Exterior Wall

INSUL PN

Common Wall

Roof Type

GABLE

Rf. /Flr. Syst.

FIRE PRF

Int. Floor Finish

Int. Wall Finish

VARIOUS

Heating System

UNIT SYS

Air Cond. system

NONE

Bth. Rm. Fixtures

ADEQUATE

Blt-Ins/Other

SPRNKLR

Add /Deduct Total

           5.65

LAND SCHEDULE

Industrial

TOTAL LAND VALUE

122*204*122*204

5*204*30*13*48*19*5*179*5*61*19*42

6*8*6*8

6*8*6*8
Design/ Style

CONVNTL

BL

PER

WR

Principal Building

1S/METAL

Add/ Ded

5.65

Sq. Ft. Area

24888.0

Price

45.47

Schedule Value

1131657

Sty. Attch. Building Code
1ENTRANC SF12 4199.0 9.86 41402

1STOOP SF12 48.0 14.30 686

1STOOP SF12 48.0 14.30 686

   TOTAL SCHEDULE                               VALU 1174431

6766.03-41-7088652.0

38.17

24888.0 BP

CF

SV

39.82

1.00

39.82

10404

Listed

Dated

Reviewed

Run Date 03/25/2021

COST / MARKET / INCOME / CORRELATIVES

Grade

Norm Cond.

Mkt. Cor.

Accr. Cond.

41.50

A

O

47

%

%

%

Repl. Val.

Const. Conv.

b  Rep. V.

Appr. Val.

1357995

93

50

1.00

2013

1357995

638258Reval. Year

ASSESSMENT CONTROL INFORMATION

Sales Price Date

Trans. Date

Action

Comments

SPLIT OUT OF 6765.01-47-4125

ADD INDUSTRIAL BLDG 15% 11;

100%12; PC3S33; 2021 REVAL BLDG

No#

PERSPECTUS

Year Built

Additions

Modernized

Effective Year

No. of Units

No. of Rooms

Street

Topo.

Income

Rate

Ind V.

B. Resid.

Quali. Code

DETACHED GARAGES, OUTBUILDINGS, ALL OTHER & MISC. ITEMS.

ASPH PAVING

Repl. Value A DEPR. Appr. Value.

50000 unit 100000

FIXLF

B DEPR. C DEPR.

70 70000

LIGHTING 11ft 16500 95 15680

2010

2010

1

1

 All

Land V.

Use Value

25000 75000 75000 119200

5000 44150 44150

638300
85700

11.83 119200 843200

HOMESITE

CLEARED

WOODED

BUILDING

TOB. ALLOTMENT

PEA. ALLOTMENT

TOTAL

Market ValueLand ValueMkt. Cor. %Inf.  %Cond. %Sched. ValueRateAcres or UnitsClassificationFrontage Ref.CLASS                        ZONE

Frontage Figr. Avg. Depth Depth Factor Equvi. Frntg.

Item No.

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Utilities

OUTBLDG

OWNER OF RECORD

          

           Balance

Bldg Site   3.000

Balance       8.830

SVSizeDescriptionCode

             **                       *-*
        *----B*-----------------------C-*----*
        I                                    I
        I                                    I
        I                                    I
        I                                    I
        I             1S/METAL               I
        I                                    I
        I                                    I
        I                                    *-*
        I                                    I I
        *                                    IAI
*-------*------------------------------------* I
*----------*--------------------------------*--*

119150

50% COMPLETE INTERIOR UNFINISHED



Public Notice of Intent to Sell  

County Owned Real Property & Commercial Shell Building 

By Competitive Upset Bidding Pursuant to NCGS 160A-269 

For Economic Development Purposes Pursuant to NCGS 158-7.1 

Notice is hereby given as follows: The Board of County Commissioners has recently received 
multiple serious inquiries and tentative informal offers to purchase an 11.83+/- acre parcel of county 
owned real property located at 255 Airport Road in Plymouth, NC 27962 together with the 25,000 
square foot industrial/commercial shell building situated thereon.  Said property is more particularly 
described and shown in a map entitled “Survey of: Washington County Commerce Center Tract One”, 
dated January 26,2010, and revised March 27,2010 by Timothy J. Esolen PLS, recorded in Plat Cabinet 3, 
Slide 33-H, in the Washington County Register of Deeds Office and has a Tax Parcel ID Number of 
6766417088. 

 The Board intends to negotiate an initial tentative offer to purchase with one of the interested 
parties subject to certain terms and conditions related to the sale and future use of the property 
including without limitation the requirement that the property be used in perpetuity only for 
industrial/commercial purposes.  Upon its consideration and tentative approval of the initial offer, which 
the Board anticipates may occur as early as its regular meeting on 11/1/21, the Board then intends to 
submit the initial tentative offer to a competitive upset bidding process in accordance with and pursuant 
to applicable laws.   

This upset bid process is intended to provide all interested parties with an equal opportunity to 
bid on the purchase of the subject property, and is further intended to result in the county and its 
citizens receiving the highest overall and best fair market value bid for the sale of the property.   

Before actually approving the submission of a tentative offer to purchase the property to the 
upset bid process, the Board will determine and make publicly available the exact dates, terms, and 
conditions of the upset bid process to be used.  However, in the interest of time, advance notice is 
hereby given for the reference and benefit of any interested potential bidders, that this upset bid 
process if approved by the Board at its regular meeting on 11/1/21 may be authorized to begin as early 
as 11/10/21 with an anticipated initial upset bid deadline of 11/22/21.   

An additional 10 day upset period is expected to be added following each period in which an 
upset bid is actually received until a period expires with no such upset bids.  The Board anticipates 
requiring a bid deposit of 5% of the bid amount be made to secure any initial offer or upset bid made on 
the property.  The Board intends to hold a public hearing before considering its final approval of the last 
and highest upset bid received, and reserves the right to review and reject any and all bids received 
during this process at any time. 

Due to the anticipated timeline of this process, any and all interested potential bidders are 
encouraged to immediately begin performing any and all due diligence related to their potential interest 
in bidding on the purchase of the property.  To aide in this process, general information about the 
property including any additional interim announcements or updates will be made available, and can be 
accessed on the county website under the RFPs tab, at: https://www.washconc.org/rfps.aspx  

For questions, or to arrange physical access to the property for due diligence purposes, please 
contact the Projects & Grants Coordinator Mary Moscato in the County Manager’s Office at 
mmoscato@washconc.org or 252-793-5823. 

https://www.washconc.org/rfps.aspx
mailto:mmoscato@


Template resolutions and notices of sale are available on the School of Government’s Local 
Government Procurement and Property Disposal microsite under “Sample Property Disposal Forms” 

www.ncpurchasing.unc.edu  

Local Government Property Disposal Procedures 

Sale by Negotiated Offer and Upset Bid (G.S. 160A-269) 

Listed below are the basic procedures required under state law for disposing of personal and 

real property by the negotiated offer and upset bid procedure.   

Step 1 Unit receives an offer to purchase property. The unit may solicit offers informally, and 
may negotiate with a prospective buyer prior to initiating the upset bid procedure. 

Step 2 Governing board adopts a resolution accepting the offer and authorizing the upset 
bid procedure. The offeror deposits 5% of bid amount with clerk while upset 
procedure takes place. 

Step 3 Publish advertisement for upset bids in a newspaper of general circulation within the 
jurisdiction (electronic advertisement is not authorized).  The advertisement must 
describe the property to be sold, the terms and conditions of the sale, and the 
requirements for submitting a qualifying upset bid within 10 days after the date of 
publication: a qualifying upset bid must be an amount at least 10% of the first $1000 
of the original offer and 5% of the remainder.  Bidders must submit qualifying upset 
bids within 10 days after date of advertisement and their bids must be accompanied 
by a 5% bid bond or deposit. 

Step 4 If a qualifying upset bid is received, repeat the advertisement and upset bid process 
until no additional qualifying upset bid is received. 

Step 5 After no additional qualifying upset bids have been received, governing board awards 
to the highest responsive, responsible bidder or rejects all bids. 

http://www.ncpurchasing.unc.edu/


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:  November 1, 2021 
 
ITEM:       Budget Transfers and Amendments and Finance Officer’s Report, Ms. 

Missy Dixon, Finance Officer 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the attached budget amendments/transfers 
to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. 
 
Ms. Dixon will also discuss the attached Monthly Financial Summary with the Board. 
 
 
 





























































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   6 
 
       DATE:     November 1, 2021 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 

 Department Head Reports from October 2021 
See attached. 
 
 

 Statistics Report from October 2021 
See attached. 
 

 
 Upcoming Parades: 

 
Roper Peanut/Christmas Festival  
Saturday, December 4, 2021 
10:00 am - 5:00 pm  
(Will get more information on Parade.) 

 
The Creswell Christmas parade will be on December 11th with line 
up at 2:30PM and start at 3:00PM. County Commissioners are 
invited to participate. I need to know who wants to ride in the 
parade so the Ruritan Club can have setup a vehicle. 
 
Plymouth Christmas Parade 
No information at this time. 

 
 



 
 

 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
November 1, 2021 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 

 
Geographic Information Systems 
Harry White 
 

• Verification of property as recorded on deeds 

• Transfer of real property 

• Land-parcel splits and recombination of property 

• Assisted the general public with maps and related needs 

• Managed correspondence via phone, email  

• Assisted the Finance Department when needed 

• Updated property maps for the Tax Department & 911 

• Attended the South Albemarle Association meeting of October 21, 2021 

 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING:  

 Currently, there are no open full-time EMS positions available.  The Transport Division has (2) 
EMT Basic full-time positions available. BCCC is graduating an EMT Basic Class in the next 
month.  A few of those students are completing their ride time with our agency and have shown 
interest in Washington-Tyrrell County.  

 



 
 

 

Meet our newest full-time Paramedic, Scott Perry.  Paramedic Perry resides in Martin County 
and comes to us from The City of Washington Fire-Rescue-EMS. He also has previous 
experience at the Basic and Intermediate levels in our system.  Paramedic Perry is currently 
completing his preceptorship under the guidance of our most experienced Paramedics and will be 
released to practice in the next couple of weeks.   

EMPLOYEE SAFETY: 

PPE remains at a comfortable level and is sufficient to absorb a peak in call volume for 
approximately 14 days.  EMS and Transport Providers continue to manage the daily disinfecting 
practices inside the bases and ambulances with intermittent deep decon of EMS units.  

OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:  

You may have seen our providers wearing T-Shirts throughout the month of October.  To 
promote awareness of Breast Cancer, our team created a design and providers purchased the 
shirts personally for the event.   

As always, thank you for your continued support of the Washington-Tyrrell County EMS 
System.  

 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
For the good news, Recreation is doing good.  In the ECAYFL Football Tournament, 12u won 1 
place, 8u 2 place, and 10u 3 place.   In Nov. we are getting basketball started.  And now for the 
bad news see below all the names on this sheet can no longer come to the recreation center or be 
a part of our recreation programs.  The names will be sent downtown and put on file. 
 
October 23, 2021 
Re: Misconduct: 
 
During the football games today the following people were involved in a mass fight. 
Charlotte Mosley 
Quanisee Barrow 
Joshua Simpson 
Tayata Daniels 
Tamara Bonds, who had a razor. 
Charlotte Mosley and her daughters and in-law were against Tamara Bonds, Charlotte’s 
son was among them but he was trying to get his mom and sisters to stop fighting. 
Lester Bonds who is Tamara’s son, ran over to the fight, and took what looked like a gun 
from his pants pocket and put it into his coat pocket. And since I have had a relationship 
with him coming to the gym since he was six I convince him to walk away, telling him 
that correctional office Ms. Cherry, and Recreation Coach Joshua Armond was holding 
his mom and keeping her safe. His cousin, a woman in her late twenty escorted him off the 
recreation grounds, and he left. 
The Police responded to the Recreation Center upon Director Randy Fulford’s request, and 
order was restored, and we continued with our tournament. 
 



 
 

 

Witness to be proved upon request, and there were more than thirty which included 
myself. 
Submitted by, 
Betti Ford, WCR Site Manager 
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
Early Voting has begun for the Town of Roper. The voters are moving slowly, I guess 
they are waiting for election day. Election Day is November 2, 2021 for Creswell and  
Roper. 
 
 
Library 
Vacant 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
 
Jalynne Waters – Ag Agent 

● Continued measuring NC soybean contest entries, as well as collecting information and 
submitting corn contest entries 
 

● Growers are starting to have poultry litter delivered to their farms and want a breakdown 
of the nutrients in it – litter samples have been sent to the NCDA for testing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

● Fall is when sampling for nematodes typically takes place – we sampled for and 
discovered nematodes on a farm in Creswell – once the report comes back with the races 
of nematodes present, we can help the grower decide about what crop and variety to plant 
in that field next growing season. 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

● Helped the Martin Co. Ag Agent harvest a cotton variety trial – tag-teaming allowed for 
the bales to be harvested, marked, weighed, and samples collected in just a few hours 

 

● Submitted a final annual report to the NCDA concerning the plastic 
pesticide jug recycling container installed using the Pesticide 
Environmental Trust Fund grant money awarded in 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

● The final Washington Co. peanut pod blasting event was held at Abemarle Beach Farms 
on October 4th – around 50 peanut samples were checked to help growers make a harvest 
timing decision 

 

● The Blacklands agents held a Soybean Turn-row meeting on October 5th – these are 
smaller meetings, and there were only 6 participants; however, the meeting lasted for 3 
hours because there were several questions and a lot of great discussions. 

● The Blacklands agents have met and are working on planning winter production meetings 
with new, timely topics and are also working to provide our growers with both an in-
person and virtual option. 

● The Tidewater Research Station will host an “Ag Careers Day” for Martin County 
schools later this month. Folks that work in a non-farm agriculture setting (extension 
agent, salesman, technician, grain bin manager, etc.) will talk to students from South 
Creek & Riverside high schools about their roles in agriculture. The idea is to show 
students that a person doesn’t have to be a farmer to be involved in agriculture. I am 
involved in the setup of this event, and will also be a speaker. 

● Also toward the end of the month, I will be working with our 4-H agent to show 
Washington County Early College students how to pull soil samples in their school 
garden. 



 
 

 

Rebecca Liverman - County Extension Director 

 

I was able to take part in a Cognitive Coaching session along with 
Crucial Conversation Training. This workshop made you think about the 
way you work in high-stress situations. 

 

We have just started Medicare Open Enrollment. The SHIIP program 
operates out of our office and we have four counselors and a data entry 
clerk. This program runs from 
October 15th - December 7th.       

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Beth Stanley Jackson 
4-H Youth Development  

 
National 4-H Week is always celebrated the first full week of October.  Washington County 
celebrated through our social media platforms by recognizing our youth and what sparks their 
interest in 4-H.  We highlighted all of our programs and gave families the opportunity to share 
what interests them!   



 
 

 

The Washington County 4-H Livestock Executive Committee met on October 6 to discuss the 
2022 Livestock Show and Sale.  We are making plans to hold the 2022 Livestock Show and Sale 
on May 4, 2022.  Registration for youth exhibitors will open on November 1.  

  

  

  

  

  

 

Our annual 4-H Holiday Greenery Fundraiser wrapped up on October 29.  This fundraiser 
supports our community clubs and allows them to raise funds for their clubs’ individual needs. 

  

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Washington County Soil and Water 
Martha Prinsloo 

During the month of October, the Soil and Water Tech has been catching up on state contracts, 
we have received $30,000 this year for state contracts but I am working on trying to receive more 
funding. I have made field visits with landowners about drainage issues. Done field visits for 
canals that need Aquatic Weed spraying. We also busy trapping beavers all over the county. I 
also have surveyed over 80 acers for state contracts. Also prepared power point to present to high 
school student at the Vernon James center. 
 
 



 
 

 

Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Burl Walker 
 

1. Resubmitted two (2) Property Exclusion requests 
2. Submitted one (1) request for an increase of a Service-Connected disability. 
3. Made and received several calls from both veteran and dependents concerning benefits. 

 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. We are still extremely busy.  We are still receiving numerous email requests, phone 
calls, fax requests and office visits for different information concerning tax bills.     

2. I worked on the auditors requested info.  Darlene Harrison assisted.   
3. We continue to collect payments for accounts that have been referred for foreclosure – 

every time we get a payment, receive correspondence (such as the need to add costs) or 
are notified in any way about a property in foreclosure we notify ZLS and update the 
accounts in foreclosure.  As information is received from Zacchaeus Legal Services 
(ZLS) we update the accounts.  We also handle phone calls, emails or visits from persons 
whose property are in foreclosure and persons interested in buying property in 
foreclosure.   

4. Denise Jones processed the Insolvents, Refunds and Releases reports. 
5. Denise Jones processed the monthly reports from NCVTS.  
6. Denise Jones researched estate files at the Clerk of Court’s office.  
7. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling adjustments, refunds, 

releases, and general questions.  
8. Darlene Harrison picked back up on wage garnishments and bank attachments.   
9. Staff continues to handle the calls regarding Republic Services (RS) and the taxpayers 

over trash cans, recycle bins, trash and debris pickup.   
10. Darlene Harrison and I processed tax certifications. 
11. Felesha Brown is working on reviewing the estate information that Denise finds and 

updating any properties due to Wills or estate filings.   
  

I was unable to submit my September report because I was out sick.  This month I am working 
from home some because I am out of the office being the care giver for my husband who has had 
spinal surgery.   
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 

Permits issued    17 
Inspections    38 
Plan reviews      2 
Flood Plain Reviews                4 
 
Consult with Duke Energy/Morrattock Road lift station project 
 



 
 

 

Consult with Ordinance committee prior to Planning Board 
 
Bertie County – 4 days: 5, 12, 19, 26 
 
October 6 Met with EM and Admin re: move to Strader 
  Department meeting with Admin 
  Class:  FRIS – Issuing Permits in a Flood Plain 
 
October 7 Class:  Resilient Community Planning 
 
October 21 Planning Board Meeting 
  Earthquake Drill with CERT members and office staff  
 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell 
 
No report submitted. 

 

Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
  
No report submitted. 
 
 
Public Utilities 
Doremus Luton 
 

Updates regarding Washington County Water System and C&D Landfill are as follows: 
 
Solid Waste 
 
The landfill took in 71.35 Tons of Leaves, Brush and Limbs, 7.14 Tons of Inert Debris, -
0-. 
Tons of Scrap Metal,  71.56 Tons of Construction Debris and 3.86 tons of Scrap Tires 
this month. 
 
Water Department 
 
Water plant staff treated and distributed a total of 12.3 (MG). The average daily usage 
was .410 MG. We served 2624 accounts, billing customers for 8.5 MG of water. 

 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
No reports submitted. 



 
 

 

Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 

1. Work with Mary Moscato and Urban Leap on copier RFP. Submission deadline for  
proposals is November 1st. Meetings will be held for vendor selection. Tentative award date 
set for November 22nd. 

2. Review MCNC contract with Missy. 
3. Submit request to have emergency phone line in Jail corrected via Jail Inspector. Work with 

DIT and Lumen multiple times. Still not corrected. 
4. Work on surplus electronic equipment – collect and document. 
5. Troubleshoot issue with internet at Landfill. 
6. Troubleshoot issue with error message on postage machine. 
7. Assist Dora with Windows update on poll laptops. 
8. Troubleshoot issue with Senior Center – cannot vpn. 
9. Get quotes for computer equipment for Senior Center and send to Vanessa. 
10. Get quotes for computer equipment for Tax office and send to Sherri. 
11. Review invoices received from Lumen for repair of 911 phone lines. Contact 911 Board to  

Discuss – this is a covered expense by 911 Board. 
12. Long Distance added by Lumen to 911 admin lines. Contact NMAC to have AT&T make  

programming changes necessary.  
13. Review Motorola invoice to verify breakdown between County and 911 Board. Review 

with Missy and Anna. 
14. Work with Dale Graver (VC3) on network information. 
15. Work with Jason Decker (SSG) and Jason Love (Southern Software) to transition from  

PageGate to STS to send reports to Fire Departments and EMS via email. Contact 
Emergency Management to reach out to Fire Departments that do not have emails. 

16. Work with McDaniel’s to update software on pc’s. 
17. Cut over Verizon Wireless First Responders in CAD to EMAG. 
18. Attend Departmental meeting. 
19. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
20. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
21. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 
 
Senior Center 
Vanessa Joyner 
 

1. Overall:  September has been a good month for activities for the seniors.  We are 
providing exercise classes both virtually and physically at the center.  We have partnered 
with Agricultural Extension with her L.I.F.T. program.  This is to provide a healthier way 
of living along with exercise.   Vanessa Joyner is teaching the exercise part by using our 
chair exercise.   This is virtually on Monday/Wednesday and recorded for the participants 
to be able to view the programs whenever convenient for them.  We are trying to keep 
our seniors safe as we are still providing activities.   

2. Woo-Ball – September 1, 2021 – We are playing games inside with the seniors.   They 
like woo-ball.   They get in a circle and bounce or throw the ball to each other.  It doesn’t 
sound like fun but they love it. 



 
 

 

3. Bingo with Staff – September 2, 2021 – Ariel played bingo with the seniors.   We have 
small prizes that was donated by a senior for them.   It is amazing how much they love 
bingo.  They had lots of fun.     

4. Corn-Hole– September 4, 2021- Every Friday morning we play corn-hole inside.   We 
have seniors come just to play.  They have a lot of fun playing it.   

5. DYI with Ariel – September 7, 2021- Ariel prepared an activity for the seniors they can 
do with their hands.  The seniors are very crafty.     

6. Chair Volleyball – September 8, 2021- We had the seniors to play chair volleyball.    
They really enjoy that.   They can get quite competitive about it.   It is something to see.   

7. Presentation on Suicide Prevention– September 10, 2021 – Ariel prepared a power point 
presentation on suicide prevention.   October is suicide prevention month.   The seniors 
were very attentive to the presentation.   

8. Memory Games with Lois Davis – September 14, 2021 - The seniors always enjoy 
having Ms. Davis to come and provide an activity for the seniors. She does a great job.  

9. Linked Senior – September 15, 2021 – Ariel use a computer based game to play with the 
seniors.   It have a variety of games we can use to play with them.   We play Jeopardy, 
Trivia, Spin & Solve, Hangman and etc.  They like to play and it sometimes challenge 
them.  Good game.     

10. Movie Day – September 22, 2021- We play a movie once a month for the seniors and 
have popcorn to serve.  It is fun for them to be able to watch a movie with the other 
seniors.       

11. Farmer’s Market -  We carried the seniors to Greenville to the farmer’s market.   They 
got vouchers from Albemarle Commissions to spend on fresh vegetables.  We don’t have 
an approved market in Washington County.  A great program to help them eat healthier.     

12. Nutrition Presentation – September 28, 2021 – Martha Carter prepares a presentation 
monthly for the seniors. She talks about better choices for snacks, vegetables and foods 
they may eat.     

 
Exercise Classes offered at the Center:   
Chair Exercise – Tuesday/Thursday 1:00 – 2:00 cost $5.00 monthly 
Dance Fitness – Monday, Wednesday & Friday – 5:30 cost $10.00 monthly (postponed) 
Line Dancing – Thursday 5:30 – cost $5.00 monthly 
Yoga – Monday 7:00 – 8:00 cost $5.00 monthly 
The Line Dancing, Zumba and Aerobics classes are opened to all citizens regardless of age. 

 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 

1. Replaced 3 runway lights. 
2. Still behind big time on grass cutting because of tractor breakdown. 
3. Cleaning fuel farm tanks with cleaning solution and pressure washer. May have to put 

coat of aluminum paint to keep from rusting. 
4. ALP – Delta Airport Consultants – update as follows:  Sending ALP to FAA 

for approval. 
5. Have not converted lights in ladies room and pilots lounge to LED without ballasts. Long 

term savings on electric consumption.   
6. Haven’t figured out procedure with AVCON for the headwall on exit Bravo and Charlie 



 
 

 

that did not meet FAA height specs. Have contacted AVCON to repair. 
7. Working on having trees removed in RPZ approaches. 
8. Town of Plymouth cutting ditch banks at airport. 

 
 
Facility Services 
Louis Boone 
 

1. Clean out gutters, cut trees down, put filters in A/C unit, Install four (4) new faucets in 
men and women bathroom and clean out generator that had leaves on the muffler at the 
Beaufort Community.  

2. Installed new emergency light in the stairwell, blow out cage for A/C unit. Installed light 
bulbs in exit light and light fixture in Detention Center. 

3. Put in lightbulbs throughout the building at the Department of Social Services and 
Library. 

4. Installed twenty (20) 4x4 posts around the lot and the library. 
5. Cut and trimmed grass around the County buildings. 
6. Took door down in the bathroom at the Health Department and fix it, then return it back 

to its hinges. 
7. Installed light bulbs, balances, light switches, receptacles, and light fixtures. Put in flush 

valves and handles in the bathroom. 
8. Empty trash, mops vacuum, sweep, washed windows, sprayed and disinfected halls and 

offices. 
 
 
MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
(Sends COVID-19 updates throughout the month) 
 
 
Surplus Report 
Renee’ Collier 
  
No surplus to report this month. 
 
 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
(see below) 



 
 

 

  

 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

60 49 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 109 109
Male 41 37 78
Female 7 1 8
Male 1 1 2
Female 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0
Female 0 7 7
Male 8 0 8
Female 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0

3 3 6 6
Male 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY21-22

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

86

2

0

0

0

7

8

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

NASH

SMCP

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcerations  in FY
(includes all Counties)

83%

2%0%0%0%
7%

8%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY21-22)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

NASH

US PRISON TRANSPORT



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

WC Dispatched 129 165 154 448
WC Transported 90 122 109 321
WC Refusals 39 43 45 127

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 1 1 2 4
SNF to Doctors 68 71 75 214
Hospital Discharges 15 19 10 44
EMS Back Up 2 8 11 21

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

TC Dispatched 62 65 56 183
TC Transported 43 48 42 133
TC Refusals 19 17 14 50

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 1 0 1
HC Transported 0 1 0 1
HC Refusals 0 0 0 0

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY21-22

Washington County

Tyrrell County

35%

25%

10%

15%

11%
4%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY21-22
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $3,851.00 11,595.00$        2,952.50$   $18,398.50
Zoning 75.00$      75.00$         175.00$       $325.00

Reinspect 100.00$    -$             325.00$       $425.00
SWUF $125.00 -$             -$             $125.00

HO Recovery 
Fee $10.00 -$             10.00$         $20.00

Total $4,161.00 $11,670.00 $3,462.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,293.50

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY21-22

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$2,000.00

$4,000.00

$6,000.00

$8,000.00

$10,000.00

$12,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY21-22) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

95%

2%2%1%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning
Reinspect SWUF
HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 382 572 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 954
Unduplicated Attendees 34 68 102
New Particpants 2 5 7
Center-Sponsored Events 100 100
Special Events 15 212 227
Caregiver's Support Group 5 5
Exercise Room 24 50 74
Dance Fitness 10 10
Yoga 32 20 52
Chair Exercise 90 114 204
Beginner's Line Dance 40 36 76
Aerobics With Sandra Taylor 0
Crafts With Sandra Lee 30 27 57
Craft Room 40 40
Drop-in Activities 0
Art Class 0
Computer Wi-fi 0

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 1218 1394 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2612
Congregate Meals Served 294 401 695
Home-Delivered Meals Served 924 993 1917

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA 105.00$  87.00$    -$      -$         -$         -$      -$         -$         -$  -$  -$  -$  192.00$      
Congregate Meals -$            
Home-Delivered Meals -$            
Activity Fees 80.00$    70.00$     150.00$      
Donations 25.00$    17.00$     42.00$        

SENIOR CENTER
FY21-22

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

Meals Served (FY21-22)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

12%

27%

0%
9%1%6%

24%

9%

0%
7%

5%0%0%0%

Senior Center Activities (FY21-22) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

Dance Fitness

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Aerobics With Sandra Taylor

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Craft Room

Drop-in Activities

Art Class

Computer Wi-fi



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 818 854 0 898 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2570
Law Enforcement 655 640 683 1978

Animal Control 54 64 59 177
EMS 109 150 156 415

Reported Incidents 85 38 42 165
Total Arrests 23 5 8 36

Misdemeanor Arrests 3 1 6 10
Felony Arrests 20 4 2 26

Total Papers Served 24 37 37 98
Criminal Papers Served 6 2 8

Civil Papers Served 24 31 35 90
Total Papers Outstanding 32 9 15 56
Criminal Papers Outstanding 3 2 5

Civil Papers Outstanding 32 6 13 51
Gun Permits Issued 19 16 26 61
Conceals Pending 7 20 26 53

Concealed Permits Issued 36 16 8 60

SHERRIFF
FY21-22

77%

7%

16%

Dispatched Calls (FY21-22)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Gun Permits (FY21-22)

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

YTD TOTALS

165

10

26

8

90

5

51

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY21-22)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                    
Current Year Tax 2,195,228.45$  940,454.78$      859,173.92$      
Current Yr Discount (43,716.55)$      (13,700.49)$      (5,844.70)$        
Current Year Penalty 925.05$             1,865.96$          305.16$             
Current Year Interest (6.12)$                6.12$                 -$                   
Watershed Tax Current 
Yr 25,738.43$        10,972.38$        10,180.54$        
Watershed Discount (515.49)$            (159.61)$            (69.40)$              
Watershed Penalty 11.08$               22.16$               3.37$                 
Watershed Interest -$                   -$                   -$                   
Prior Year Tax 74,965.22$        19,860.44$        39,510.04$        
Prior Year Penalty 75.34$               54.53$               66.32$               
Prior Year Interest 8,417.44$          2,882.20$          8,571.05$          
Prior Year Watershed 758.62$             168.17$             273.25$             
Prior Year WS Penalty 0.89$                 0.76$                 0.67$                 
Prior Year WS Interest 558.84$             236.60$             390.64$             
Bad Checks -$                   (122.76)$            (1,428.05)$        
Prepayments 1,684.51$          2,986.19$          2,988.64$          

TOTAL 2,264,125.71$  965,527.43$     914,121.45$     -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$  -$                                    

Initiated 10
Amount 5,994.72$          
Satisfied/Cancelled
Amount

*

83,890.99$        72,823.51$        156,714.50$                       

 -$                                    
Billed Current Yr 1,175,700.00$  1,175,700.00$                    
Collected Current Yr 372,776.94$      137,763.88$      67,315.62$        577,856.44$                       
Bad Checks -$                   (300.00)$            (575.00)$            (875.00)$                             

TOTAL 1,548,476.94$  137,463.88$      66,740.62$        1,752,681.44$                    

Billed Current Yr -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$                                    
Collected Current Yr -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$                                    
Prior Yrs Collected -$                   -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$                                    

Collected Current Yr 8,171.27$          14,087.13$        22,258.40$                         

DMV -$                                    

Creswell Levy 6,909.47$          7,197.76$          14,107.23$                         

TOTAL -$                   6,909.47$          7,197.76$          -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$  14,107.23$                         

3,812,602.65$  1,201,963.04$  1,074,970.47$  -$               -$               -$                   -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$  -$  6,089,536.16$                    

Tax and Tag 
Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX
FY21-22

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Drainage Fees -    

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees

Current Year Tax Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in 
million gallons)

76.56 7432 8508 16,017

Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in 
million gallons)

9.222 8302 8483 16,794

Base Charges 64,536$      64,475$    64,548$    193,559$        
Consumption Charges 47,983$      44,915$    57,018$    149,916$        
Reconnecton Charges 1,365$        2,030$      1,960$      5,355$            

 Number of Abatements 11 12 9 32                    

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 

3,224.00$   2,431$      1,352$      7,007.00$       

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

14.9 12.9 27.800

Number of Customers 2624 2627 2624 7,875
New taps 4 1 2 7

Limbs, Brush & Leaves 76.97 69.61 71.35 217.93
Inert Debris 29.68 24.93 7.14 61.75
Scrap Metal 0.54 0.35 0 0.89
C&D 68.47 132.55 71.56 272.58
Tires 3.73 5.11 3.86 12.70
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$  4,844.65$  14,533.95$            

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY21-22

LANDFILL(in tons)

39%

11%0%

48%

2%

Landfill Collections (in tons) (FY21-22)

Limbs, Brush & Leaves

Inert Debris

Scrap Metal

C&D

Tires

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 20-21 (in million gallons)



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   6 
   
       DATE:     November 1, 2021 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Mr. Potter would like to have the following Closed Sessions pursuant to CGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  
(attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda November 1, 2021
	11-1-2021 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Item 1a) 10-4-2021 minutes
	Item 1a) 10-11-2021 minutes
	Item 1b) Tax Refunds & Releases
	Item 1c) Proc2021-025--Tobacco Awareness Month 11-2021
	Item 1d) Ratification of Reso2021-014 approving conveyance of personal property
	Item 1e) Reso2021-023 Auth Sale of 111 E. Main St. 11-1-21
	Item 1f) Reso2021-024 Auth Sale of 758 Spruill Bridge , Creswell 11-1-2021
	11-1-2021 Item 2 (public forum)
	HOW TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PUBLIC FORUM DURING COVID-19 AT THE NOVEMBER 1, 2021 WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
	Due to regrettably necessary ongoing protective measures related to COVID-19, it will likely be necessary limit and restrict physical access to this meeting.  Washington County is committed to maintaining the highest standards of transparency and comm...

	11-1-2021 Item 3 Department Information Update-Cooperative Ext.
	11-1-2021 Item 4 Reso 2021-026 Auth Upset Bid Commerce Center
	Item 4 BOCC MEMO re Resolution 2021-026 Authorizing Commerce Center Upset Bid Process Sale for 20211101 mtg w attachments
	BOCC MEMO re Resolution 2021-026 Authorizing Commerce Center Upset Bid Process Sale for 20211101 mtg
	Resolution 2021-026 Authorizing Upset Bid Process Commerce Center Sale 20211028
	Commerce Building Fact Sheet 20210401
	Washco Commerce Building Tax Card 2021
	FINAL Public Notice of Intent to Sell Commerce Building 20211007 (2)

	11-1-2021 Item 5 Budget Amendments & Transfers and Finance Officer's Report
	Item 5 BAs & BTs 11-1-2021
	Item 5 10-26-2021 Finance Report
	11-1-2021 Item 6 Other Items
	Item 6 DH Reports for 11-1-2021 BoC Meeting
	During the month of October, the Soil and Water Tech has been catching up on state contracts, we have received $30,000 this year for state contracts but I am working on trying to receive more funding. I have made field visits with landowners about dra...

	Cover Sheet for Stat Report
	FY21-22  Statistic Reports
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Senior Center
	Sheriff's Office
	 Tax
	Utilities

	11-1-2021 Item 7 Closed Session



